
ABABABAB    
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 13 FEBRUARY 2014 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 

 

 

3. Minutes of the Meetings Held on: 
 

 

 3.1 14 November 2013 
 

3 - 6 

 3.2 12 December 2013 
 

7 - 8 

4. Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle Licensing 
 

9 - 54 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Thacker (Chairman), Peach (Vice Chairman), Allen, Kreling, Nawaz, Serluca, Jamil, 
Saltmarsh, Miners and Davidson 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Simons, Johnson and Harrington 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Gemma George on telephone 01733 

452268 or by email – gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



  

AB 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 14 NOVEMBER 2013 

 
Members Present: Councillors Thacker (Chairman), Peach (Vice Chairman), Kreling, 

Nawaz, Jamil and Miners   
 
Officers Present:  Adrian Day, Licensing Manager 
   Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Allen, Councillor Serluca, Councillor 
Saltmarsh and Councillor Davidson.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meetings held on: 
 
3.1 18 July 2013 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2013 were approved as a true and 

accurate record. 
 
3.2 29 July 2013 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2013 were approved as a true and 

accurate record. 
 
3.3  Minutes of the Sub-Committee Hearings Held Between July 2013 and 

September 2013 
 
 The following minutes of the Sub-Committee hearings held between July 2013 and 

September 2013 were approved as true and accurate records: 
 

i) 17/07/13 – New Premises Licence, Iain Gordon-Smith 
ii) 16/09/13 – Review of Premises Licence, Marisqueira 

 
4. Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 

Licensing  
  
 The Committee received a report as a result of its decision at the meeting held on 29 

July 2013 to approve specific models of the Peugeot E7 as suitable to be licensed as 
a Hackney Carriage Vehicle in Peterborough.  

 
 Following approval from the Committee, the existing Conditions of Fitness were 

amended and named the ‘Peterborough Conditions of Fitness for Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles’. 

 
In order for the Peugeot E7 vehicle to be licensed, specific conditions within the 
existing ‘Conditions of Fitness’ were required to be amended or removed to enable 

3



  

the vehicle to meet the specification required. Officers had also taken the opportunity 
to update the conditions in general to ensure that when adopted, the ‘Peterborough 
Conditions of Fitness for Hackney Carriage Vehicles’ would be appropriate and fit for 
purpose. Following a decision by the Committee, the outcome would form part of the 
Peterborough City Council’s Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy and Guidance 
document. 

 
 It was therefore requested that the Committee approve the draft ‘Conditions of 

Fitness’ and to adopt the conditions as the ‘Peterborough Conditions of Fitness for 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles’. The Committee was also requested to consider the 
possible exemptions available in relation to condition 13.3, this being ‘the 
requirement for the nearside occasional flip down seat to be of swivel type’ and to 
agree appropriate exemptions with appropriate set timeframes and implementation 
dates.  

  
 The Licensing Officer addressed the Committee and provided an overview of the 
exemption options available and further advised that it was requested that condition 
12.11 be amended to remove the necessity for the ramp to have a ‘safety lip’.   

 
Members were invited to comment on the conditions and issues raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

• Many of the current licensed Hackney Vehicles did not have the swivel seat 
fitted and it would be un-realistic to request a retrofit, due to both cost and 
practicality. The Committee was therefore requested to issue exemptions as 
it saw fit; 

• The Committee may offer an exemption to the Mercedes-Benz Vito for a 
specified time. This would allow the manufacturers and suppliers to explore 
the possibility of providing the swivel seat; and 

• A permanent exemption could be given to the Mercedes-Benz Vito, however 
this could be perceived by the other manufacturers and suppliers as a 
commercial advantage to Mercedes. 

 
Simon Guilliatt, Allied Vehicles, was present and requested permission to speak. 
This was agreed by the Committee. 
 
Mr Guilliatt addressed the Committee and the key points outlined included: 
 

• The reconsideration of the conditions of fitness had seen the removal of the 
tight turning circle requirements, this was welcomed; 

• The requirement for a swivel mounted rear passenger seat was not objected 
to in principle, however with the proposed exemptions the requirement would 
only apply to E7 taxis; 

• The effect would be that E7s would cost more than they otherwise would and 
this would make them less attractive to buyers; 

• Competing commercial bodies should be dealt with both fairly and equally 
unless there was a compelling reason not to, for which there was none in this 
instance; 

• Making the vehicle less commercially attractive would amount to a restriction 
on imports which would be unlawful under the EU Treaty, unless justified as 
a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate public health or safety aim. 
Imposing the requirement for the swivel seat on one manufacturer’s vehicle, 
but not on others, was inherently disproportionate. The condition should be 
applied to all vehicles, not just one; and 

• There had only been one other local authority, Blackburn Council, which had 
sought to single out a particular manufacturer’s vehicles in their conditions of 

4



  

fitness. This had since been modified due to the unlawful effects of the policy 
being drawn to the Council’s attention. 

 
Members further debated the conditions and raised a number of concerns as to the 
length of time that vehicles newly presented for licensing, without the swivel type 
seat, would be exempt from the condition. 
 

 RESOLVED:  
 
 The Committee approved and adopted the ‘Peterborough Conditions of Fitness for 

Hackney Carriage Vehicles’, subject to the following amendments: 
 

1. Condition 12.11 - To amend the condition to remove the requirement of the 
wheelchair ramp to have a safety lip; 

2. Condition 13.3 – To include the following exemptions: 
  

‘The near-side occasional seat must be of swivel type in order to accommodate 
the needs of passengers with physical impairments, unless’; 

 
a. the vehicle was licensed prior to these Conditions of Fitness being adopted and this 

facility was not installed. 
b. the vehicle is newly presented for licensing and this facility is currently not available as 

an option; where this is the case this condition will not be implemented for 12 months, 
and will apply to all newly presented vehicles for licensing from 15 November 2014 
(allowing manufacturers / suppliers time to comply). 

 
 Reasons for the decision: 
 

The decision was made to comply with the statutory requirements regarding the 
regular review of licensing policies and to ensure that the policies and procedures 
continued to be fit for purpose.  

 
 
 

                    7.00pm – 7.20pm 
                                Chairman 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



  

AB 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 12 DECEMBER 2013 

 
Members Present: Councillors Thacker (Chairman), Peach (Vice Chairman), Kreling, 

Serluca, Jamil and Saltmarsh   
 
Officers Present:  Peter Gell, Strategic Regulatory Services Manager 

Kerry Leishman, Licensing Development Officer 
   Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Allen, Councillor Miners and Councillor 
Nawaz. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Late Night Levy and Early Morning Restriction Orders 
 
 The Committee received a report which sought its views as to whether a formal 

consultation should take place with a view to implementing a Late Night Levy or 
Early Morning Restriction Order. 

 
 The Strategic Regulatory Services Manager advised that the decision to introduce a 

late night levy was an option available to all licensing authorities in the whole of their 
respective areas.  The levy would be payable by the holders of any premises licence 
or club premises certificate, in relation to premises in the authority’s area, which 
authorised the sale or supply of alcohol on any days during a period beginning at or 
after midnight and ending at or before 6.00am, regardless of the size and nature of 
the premises. 

 
The licensing authority had discussed the need for a Levy with the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Office and the Police Superintendent of the Peterborough district 
area.  The idea of a Levy at the current time was not considered wholly appropriate 
by the aforementioned.  Any decision to implement a Levy was required to be 
heavily evidenced based, both from a licensing authority point of view as well as the 
police.  It was therefore thought that such a decision could potentially harm the city’s 
prospects for its vision of a café culture. 

 
 There were a number of possible advantages and disadvantages of implementing a 

levy and these were outlined to the Committee. It was further advised that at the time 
of the report, there had only been one local authority which had implemented a levy, 
this being Newcastle. 

 
In relation to Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs), these were designed to 
address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol-related crime and 
disorder in specific areas at specific times; serious public nuisance; and other 
instances of alcohol-related anti-social behaviour which was not directly attributable 
to specific premises. An EMRO could apply to the whole or a part of the licensing 
authority’s area. 

7



  

 
An EMRO was considered more of a last resort than other measures available under 
the Licensing Act 2003. The Section 182 Guidance suggested that before 
introducing an EMRO local authorities have regard to other measures such as the 
introduction of Cumulative Impact Zone, reviewing licences of specific problem 
premises, encouraging the creation of business led best practice schemes etc. 
 

 Members were invited to debate the report and the following key points were 
highlighted: 

 

• Local businesses should not be burdened with further costs at the current 
time; 

• The proposals should be revisited in 18 months or so;  

• The introduction of a Levy may have a negative impact upon the night time 
economy; and 

• There had been no other authorities bar Newcastle which had implemented a 
Levy. 
 

 RESOLVED:  
 
 The Committee noted the contents of the report and agreed that a formal 

consultation, with a view to implementing a Late Night Levy or Early Morning 
Restriction Order, should not be undertaken. 

 
 Reasons for the decision: 
 

The Committee did not feel that, at the current time, there were sufficient advantages 
to further exploring the implementation of a Late Night Levy or Early Morning 
Restriction Order. 

 
 

                    7.00pm – 7.11pm 
                                Chairman 

8



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 
  

13 FEBRUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 
 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Marco Cereste 

Contact Officer(s): Licensing Manager Adrian Day  

Strategic Regulatory Services Manager Peter Gell  

 

Tel. 454437 

Tel. 453429 

 
CHANGES IN THE LICENSING POLICY FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLE LICENSING 
 

OPTIONS 

FROM : The Licensing Team 
              Licensing Manager Adrian Day 

Deadline date : n/a 

 
The Committee is requested to approve one of the following options: 
 

1. Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by any VOSA authorised 
MOT testing station instead of the existing requirement for an MOT exemption test to be 
carried out by the councils contracted test centre.  

 
2. Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by only VOSA authorised 

MOT testing stations which are members of the councils “vehicle testing centre scheme” (yet 
to be implemented) instead of the existing requirement for an MOT exemption test to be 
carried out by the councils contracted test centre.  

 
3. Retain the current requirement to have an MOT exemption test carried out by the councils 

contracted test centre and utilise the contract framework already in place with Amey (formerly 
known as Enterprise). 
 

 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is of a result of a 12 week consultation in relation to the review of the council’s 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle licensing policy. 
 
1.2 There is a need for officers to review the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 

Policy in order to ensure that it remains appropriate and fit for purpose. 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
2.1 Following the approval from the licensing committee on 21st January 2013, a 12 week 

consultation in relation to the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Policy a 
full consultation was launched. The consultation was launched on 1st February 2013 with an 
end date of 25th April 2013.   

 
2.2 The purpose of the consultation was to seek responses from all stakeholders who have an 

interest in or may be affected by the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy. A copy of 
the relevant part of the consultation document is attached at (Appendix 1) 

  
2.3 A list of consultee’s can be found at (Appendix 2).  

 

9



2.4 It should be noted that although the consultation covered many areas of Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Licensing for the purposes of this report the licensing committee are asked 
to consider only vehicle testing for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles. Therefore 
only responses relating to this area have been included. The other areas of the consultation 
will be included in further reports to the committee at a later date. 

 
2.5 It is essential that all policies are current and fit for purpose in order for any regulation to be 

effective. Therefore it is good practice to review policies on a regular basis in order for any 
policy to be appropriate and up to date and fit for purpose.  

 
2.5 Following the committee’s decision the outcome will form part of the Peterborough City 

Council’s Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy and Guidance document. 
 
2.6 This report is for the Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.4.1.3 (a) 

“To exercise the functions of the authority as listed in Schedule 2.4.4, where these are not 
delegated to officers as listed at section 2.4.3, namely”, “hackney carriage and private hire 
vehicle licensing”. 

 
3. TIMESCALE 
  

Is this a Major Policy Item /Statutory Plan? No 

 
4.    BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
4.1 All councils have different policies in relation to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 

in order to regulate the service in accordance with local requirements. A policy which is 
deemed appropriate in one locality may not meet the requirements or expectations within 
another locality.  

 
4.2 It is good practice to review all policies from time to time in order to ensure that the policy 

adopted remains fit for purpose, takes in to account any changes in legislation, or to 
consider any other factors that may have an affect on the service to which the policy 
relates. 

 
4.3 Peterborough City Council has various individual policies relating to Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Licensing many of which have remained unchanged for many years. Some of 
the aspects of licensing have been reviewed recently such as the vehicle age policy and 
the testing requirements for new driver applications. Also the conditions of fitness relating to 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles have been amended recently approving certain models of the 
Peugeot E7 as being suitable to be licensed as Hackney Carriage Vehicles.  

 
4.4 There are currently 185 Hackney Carriage and 500 Private Hire vehicles licensed     

Peterborough. All vehicles are currently required to pass the MOT exemption test prior to 
being licensed, and then on an annual basis at the time of the renewal of the vehicle 
licence. On reaching 6 years of age from the date of first registration as indicated on the V5 
document the vehicle is required to be tested every 6 months. 

 
4.5 The MOT exemption test covers additional items including, the spare tyre, wheelchair ramp 

where appropriate, airbag lights, first aid kit, fire extinguisher, reversing lights and the fare 
card. 

 
4.6 As part of the current vehicle licence renewal process reminder packs are sent out to 

vehicle licence holders 1 month in advance of the renewal date. Licence holders are 
advised to contact the taxi licensing team in order to make an appointment for the vehicle to 
attend one of the two designated testing stations in order for the MOT exemption test to be 
carried out. Once the vehicle has successfully passed its test the driver is advised to make 
an appointment to attend Bayard Place to have the new vehicle licence plate fitted. 

 
4.7 For purposes of the consultation we asked stakeholders to consider 3 possible options for 

the future of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle testing. The existing testing 

10



arrangements had proved to be cumbersome and non-efficient for the trade and the 
council.  

 
5. OPTION 1 
 
5.1 Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by any VOSA 

authorised MOT testing station instead of the existing requirement for an MOT exemption 
test to be carried out by the councils contracted test centre.  

  
5.2 Listed below are the advantages for this option as identified through the consultation 

process and taking in to consideration the relevant responses received. 
 

1. Will simplify current arrangements and partially reduce the administrative burden on 
both the driver and the council. 

2. Will help to reduce the number of routine interactions between the driver and the 
council and hence help reduce any inconvenience or loss of income by avoidable 
contact with the council.  

3. Will contribute to a more cost effective service freeing up resources enabling 
enforcement issues to be dealt with in a more timely fashion. 

4. Encourage competition and therefore generate a more competitive pricing structure and 
market place. 

5. Will provide flexibility for drivers offering an increased availability of test appointments.  
 
5.3 Listed below are the disadvantages for this option as identified through the consultation 

process and taking in to consideration the relevant responses received. 
 

1. The council will not have access to analytical data in regards to MOT failures in order to 
identify where specific vehicles fail tests frequently. 

2. The standard of the vehicle testing may vary depending on the testing centre visited, 
also there could be a commercial benefit for scrupulous garages to fail vehicles if they 
gained from carrying out the repairs.   

3. Additional vehicle test requirements that are currently subject to testing under the 
councils MOT exemption test regime are not tested as part of a standard VOSA MOT 
test requirements; these items whilst not being considered crucial to the mechanical 
safety of the vehicle, for safety purposes are deemed appropriate for passenger and 
driver safety. They include the certification of the fire extinguisher, first aid kit, fare card, 
and the safety testing of the wheelchair ramp or tail lift where appropriate. 

4. The driver will still need to attend Bayard Place to have the new licence plate fitted, so 
this will not reduce the number of visits for the driver. This could be resolved if the new 
plate was sent to the driver via post, this is an area that would need to be explored. 

5. Where there are concerns with a vehicle not specifically relating to the mechanical test 
currently these are fed back to the council, this would most probably not take place if 
this option was adopted. 

6. With current arrangement using 2 authorised testing centres where a serious issue is 
identified at the testing of the vehicle the licence plate is removed. If this option is 
adopted there would be no way of controlling this, and there may be the possibility of 
vehicles with serious issues reaming in service.  

 
6. OPTION 2 
 
6.1 Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by only VOSA 

authorised MOT testing stations which are members of the councils “vehicle testing centre 
scheme” (yet to be implemented) instead of the existing requirement for an MOT exemption 
test to be carried out by the councils contracted test centre.  

 
6.2 Listed below are the advantages for this option as identified through the consultation 

process and taking in to consideration the relevant responses received. 
 

1. Will simplify current arrangements and partially reduce the administrative burden on 
both the driver and the council. 

11



2. Will help to reduce the number of routine interactions between the driver and the 
council and hence help reduce any inconvenience or loss of income by avoidable 
contact with the council.  

3. Will somewhat contribute to a more cost effective service freeing up resources enabling 
enforcement issues to be dealt with in a more timely fashion. 

4. Encourage competition and therefore generate a more competitive pricing structure and 
market place. 

5. Will provide flexibility for drivers offering an increased availability of test appointments.  
6. The council will still have access to analytical data in regards to MOT failures in order to 

identify where specific vehicles fail tests frequently. 
7. Additional vehicle test requirements that are currently subject to testing under the 

councils MOT exemption test regime will continue to be tested and monitored. 
 
6.3 Listed below are the disadvantages for this option as identified through the consultation 

process and taking in to consideration the relevant responses received. 
 

1. Whilst this option may simplify the current arrangements and partially reduce the 
administrative burden on both the driver and the council it will introduce an additional 
pressure on resources.  

2. There will be a requirement to identify and implement testing centres and manage the 
testing scheme effectively to ensure compliance and purpose. This will create an 
additional enforcement and administrative pressures on the department, resulting in the 
need for additional resources.   

3. The council’s budget report for the new financial year has stated a saving of £70k must 
be made within the licensing team. In effect this can only be achieved by restructures 
and staff reductions, hence additional staffing capacity will be required to implement 
and manage the scheme. 

4. The driver will still need to attend Bayard Place to have the new licence plate fitted, so 
this will not reduce the number of visits for the driver. This could be resolved if the new 
plate was sent to the driver via post, this is an area that would need to be explored. 

 
7. OPTION 3 
 
7.1 Retain the current requirement to have an MOT exemption test carried out by the councils 

contracted test centre and utilise the contract framework already in place with Amey 
(formerly known as Enterprise).  

 
7.2 Listed below are the advantages for this option as identified through the consultation 

process and taking in to consideration the relevant responses received. 
 

1. The council will continue to have access to analytical data in regards to MOT failures in 
order to identify where specific vehicles fail tests frequently. 

2. Additional vehicle test requirements that are currently subject to testing under the 
councils MOT exemption test regime will remain in place. They include the certification 
of the fire extinguisher, first aid kit, fare card, and the safety testing of the wheelchair 
ramp and tail lift where appropriate. 

3. As part of their consultation response Enterprise has offered additional services, 
discussions have taken place and the following advantages are available as follows: 

a. Enterprise will arrange the booking of tests direct with the driver, which will 
reduce the burden on the licensing team, enabling redistribution of the relevant 
resources to concentrate on increased enforcement. 

b. Will refer any overflow testing to Unity direct. 
c. Develop a process where Enterprise will fit the new vehicle licence plate, this 

will eliminate the need for the vehicle to return to Bayard Place to have this 
done. Hence reducing the inconvenience caused to the driver and reducing the 
burden on the licensing team.  

d. Increased testing availability Monday to Friday 7am to 6pm. 
e. Electronic transfer of pass sheets so no need for the driver to present to Bayard 

Place. 
4. This would reduce the interactions for the trade as the test and licence plate fitting 

12



would be carried out in one visit, reducing the inconvenience caused by having to 
attend 2 appointments. 

5. Continue to remove vehicle licence plate where serious issues have been identified. 
6. Report relevant vehicle condition issues to the licensing team as appropriate. 

 
7.3 Listed below are the disadvantages for this option as identified through the consultation 

process and taking in to consideration the relevant responses received. 
 

1. There will be an increased fee charged to the council for each test to cover the 
additional services offered by this option, however we are confident that this can be 
absorbed by the associated savings in resources.  

2. There is no potential for reduction in test fees for the trade as testing would not be open 
to the wider market. 

  
8. CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
8.1 The consultation was launched on 1st February 2013 for a 12 week period, ending on 25th 

April 2013. A public notice was published in the Peterborough Telegraph on Thursday 31 
January 2013. A copy is attached at (Appendix 3). 

 
8.2 A log of the responses received in relation to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 

testing is attached at (Appendix 4). 
 
8.3 All responses received in relation Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle testing have 

been collated and are attached at (Appendix 5).  
 

8.4 A detailed response to the consultation was submitted by Mr Ian Robinson Regulatory 
Officer (Peterborough City Council). It should be noted that the comments mentioned within 
this response are the personal opinions of the officer, not those of the service or 
department. Therefore this response must be treated as a response from an individual and 
not be considered in anyway as an officer recommendation. 

 
9. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 In considering the options to review the vehicle testing arrangements for Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Vehicles the committee should regard the following information. 
 
9.2 The committee should consider the implications, risks and consequences of amending the 

vehicle testing arrangements in particular any related to safety. 
 
10. RISKS 
 
10.1 Any risks identified have been documented in paragraphs 5.3, 6.3 and 7.3 of this report. 
 
11. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
11.1 The Licensing Committee to make decision and this will form part of the Taxi and Private 

Hire Licensing Policy / Guidance document. 
 
12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

• To comply with statutory requirements regarding the regular review of licensing policies. 

• To consider the request received from Allied Vehicles Ltd to review the policy. 

• To ensure that the policies and procedures continue to be fit for purpose. 
 
13. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

• Retain the status quo. 
 

13



14. IMPLICATIONS 
 

14.1 Financial – There are costs associated with undertaking a public consultation exercise, 
however there are also costs associated where a policy is challenged due to it not being fit 
for purpose. 
 

14.2 Legal – Legal support has been provided by the council’s legal team regarding the 
provision of advice and guidance on taxi licensing matters and the requirements of the 
consultation. Some advice has also been provided by counsel.   
 

15. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 

Information) Act 1985) 
 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 The Town and Police Clauses Act 1847 
 Equality Act 2010 
  
 

14



 Page 1 of 7

APPENDIX 1 

Peterborough Taxi and Private Hire Licensing 

Consultation Document 
 

Part 2 Part 2 Part 2 Part 2 –––– Vehicle Testing Vehicle Testing Vehicle Testing Vehicle Testing 
 

Depending on the outcome of the consultation, a combination of the following may be 
adopted. 

1. Remove the requirement for a vehicle to have an MOT exemption test. 
2. Remove the requirement to book a test via the licensing department. 
3. Remove the requirement for a vehicle to be tested at the Unity or Enterprise 

testing centres. 
4. Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test.  
5. Introduce the requirement to book the MOT test direct with the test centre. 
6. Introduce a “vehicle testing centre scheme” consisting of VOSA authorised 

MOT testing stations that can meet additional criteria as set by the council. 
7. Retain the requirement for a vehicle to have an MOT exemption test. 
8. Retain the requirement to book a test via the licensing department. 
9. Retain the requirement for a vehicle to be tested at the Unity or Enterprise 

testing centres. 
10. Other options deemed suitable as suggested through the consultation 

process. 
 
1. Introduction and Objectives 
 
Introduction 
 

There are currently 185 Hackney Carriage and 500 Private Hire vehicles licensed in 
Peterborough. All vehicles are currently required to pass the MOT exemption test 
prior to being licensed, and then on an annual basis at the time of the renewal of the 
vehicle licence. On reaching 6 years of age from the date of first registration as 
indicated on the V5 document the vehicle is required to be tested every 6 months. 
 
The MOT exemption test covers additional items including, the spare tyre, wheelchair 
ramp where appropriate, airbag lights, first aid kit, fire extinguisher, reversing lights 
and the fare card. 
 
This document sets out options for the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 
testing arrangements in Peterborough. It is a consultation document and comments 
are invited from all those who could be affected by the proposals.  
 
Objectives 
 
This consultation has the following main aims. 
 

1. To fulfil the councils commitment to ensure that its policy for Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire licensing is current and fit for purpose. 

2. To ensure the licensing service is efficient and cost effective offering value for 
money to its service users.  

3. To simplify arrangements and reduce the administrative burden on drivers 
and the council without compromising safety standards or reducing the quality 
of licensed vehicles. 

 

15



 Page 2 of 7

 
 
2. Background and Present Arrangements 
 
Fees  
 
The council has the delegated powers to set fees in relation to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle licensing functions, they cannot be used to raise revenue or to 
make a profit for the council; they can only be set to cover the cost incurred by the 
licensing function. 
 
Currently the annual renewal fee for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle licence is £210 
including the annual test, the annual renewal fee for a Private Hire Vehicle licence is 
£180 including the annual test. The current fee for the 6 month test for both Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles is £65. Where a vehicle fails a test there is a fee 
of £21 for the 3rd and subsequent re-tests if tested within 14 days, and £42 if tested 
after 14 days. 
 
Current Process 
 
As part of the vehicle licence renewal process reminder packs are sent out to vehicle 
licence holders 1 month in advance of the renewal date. Licence holders are advised 
to contact the taxi licensing team in order to make an appointment for the vehicle to 
attend one of the two designated testing stations in order for the MOT exemption test 
to be carried out. 
 
3. OPTIONS 
 
Option 1:  
 
Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by any VOSA 
authorised MOT testing station instead of the requirement for an MOT exemption test 
carried out by either of the councils 2 testing stations.  
 

a. Remove the requirement for a vehicle to have an MOT exemption test. 
b. Remove the requirement to book a test via the licensing department. 
c. Remove the requirement for a vehicle to be tested at the Unity or Enterprise 

testing stations. 
d. Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by any 

VOSA authorised MOT testing station. 
e. Introduce the requirement for the driver to book the MOT test direct with the 

testing station. 
 
Advantages 
 

1. Will simplify current arrangements and partially reduce the administrative 
burden on both the driver and the council. 

2. Will help to reduce the number of routine interactions between the driver and 
the council and hence help reduce any inconvenience or loss of income by 
avoidable contact with the council.  

3. Will contribute to a more cost effective service freeing up resources enabling 
issues to be dealt with in a more timely fashion. 

4. Encourage competition and therefore generate a more competitive pricing 
structure and market place. 

5. Will provide flexibility for drivers offering an increased availability of test 

16



 Page 3 of 7

appointments.  
 
Disadvantages 
 

1. The council will not have access to analytical data in regards to MOT failures 
in order to identify where specific vehicles fail tests frequently. 

2. Additional vehicle test requirements that are currently subject to testing under 
the councils MOT exemption test regime are not tested as part of a standard 
VOSA MOT test requirements; these items whilst not being considered crucial 
to the mechanical safety of the vehicle, for safety purposes are deemed 
appropriate for passenger and driver safety. They include the certification of 
the fire extinguisher, first aid kit, fare card, and the safety testing of the 
wheelchair ramp where appropriate. 

 
Option 2:  
 
Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by only VOSA 
authorised MOT testing stations which are members of the councils “vehicle testing 
centre scheme” instead of an MOT exemption test carried out by the councils 2 test 
stations.  
 

a. Remove the requirement for a vehicle to have an MOT exemption test. 
b. Remove the requirement to book a test via the licensing department. 
c. Remove the requirement for a vehicle to be tested at the Unity and Enterprise 

testing stations. 
d. Introduce the requirement to have a standard MOT test carried out by VOSA 

authorised MOT testing stations that belong to the councils “vehicle testing 
centre scheme”. 

e. Introduce the requirement to book the MOT test direct with the testing station. 
 
As option 1 above, however the MOT test must be carried out by VOSA authorised 
testing stations which are members of the councils “vehicle testing centre scheme”. 
In order for a testing centre to become a member of this scheme they must be able to 
demonstrate, agree to, or meet the requirements listed below. 
 
Proposed Vehicle Testing Centre Scheme Requirements 
 

a. The testing centre and the technicians conducting the tests must be VOSA 
authorised. 

b. When conducting an MOT test the test centre must be able to carry out some 
additional safety checks (these are to be confirmed following the consultation 
and will be no more than are required at present).These items must be 
documented by the test centre and evidence provided to accompany the MOT 
certificate. 

c. Where a vehicle fails on major faults the test centre must notify the council 
immediately so that a decision can be made in relation to suspending the 
licence plate. 

d. They must have in place a documented customer service policy detailing their 
complaints procedure and complaints handling process. 

e. Records must be kept of customer complaints received. To include the 
outcome of the investigation in to the complaint. 

f. They must offer competitive prices and ensure value for money. 
g. They must be able to communicate with the council via email and telephone.   
h. Any enquiry from the council must be responded to within a reasonable 

timescale according to the nature and urgency of the enquiry, with a 

17



 Page 4 of 7

maximum response time of 2 working days. 
i. Statistical information and vehicle data should be made available on request 

and on a monthly basis. 
j. Monthly statistics and data should be in spreadsheet form (ms excel or 

compatible) and in the agreed format. 
k. Data must be provided via email. 

 
 
It should also be noted that Peterborough City Council: 
 

a. Will not be entering in to a contract with any MOT test station that is a 
member of the councils “testing centre scheme”. 

b. Is not by way of entering any MOT testing station on its “testing centre 
scheme” guaranteeing, endorsing or promoting the quality of work or the 
integrity of that MOT test station. 

c. Will not accept responsibility for handling any test related issues or 
complaints arising from any tests or re-tests undertaken by the MOT test 
station, such disputes remain between the customer and the MOT test 
station. However we will monitor complaints to ensure that they have been 
dealt with according to the individual policies provided by the testing centres 
and that the driver has been treated accordingly. 

d. Will not be involved / responsible for the booking of vehicle tests. 
e. Will not be responsible for any payments to any test centre for testing, and 

likewise will not be responsible for any refunds in relation to testing.  
f. Will reserve the right to remove an MOT testing station for the scheme where 

it is deemed appropriate to do so. 
 
 
Advantages 
 

1. Will simplify current arrangements and partially reduce the administrative 
burden on both the driver and the council. 

2. Will help to reduce the number of routine interactions between the driver and 
the council and hence help reduce any inconvenience or loss of income by 
avoidable contact with the council.  

3. Will contribute to a more cost effective service freeing up resources enabling 
issues to be dealt with in a more timely fashion. 

4. Encourage competition and therefore generate a more competitive pricing 
structure and market place. 

5. Will provide flexibility for drivers offering an increased availability of test 
appointments.  

6. The council will still have access to analytical data in regards to MOT failures 
in order to identify where specific vehicles fail tests frequently. 

7. Additional vehicle test requirements that are currently subject to testing under 
the councils MOT exemption test regime will continue to be tested and 
monitored. 

 
Disadvantages 
 

1. There may be a perception that where testing is available through the open 
market that audit trails on continuity may be affected. 

 
Option 3:  
 
Retain the current requirement to have an MOT exemption test carried out by either 

18



 Page 5 of 7

of the councils 2 testing stations.  
a. Retain the requirement for a vehicle to have an MOT exemption test. 
b. Retain the requirement to book a test via the licensing department. 
c. Retain the requirement for a vehicle to be tested at the Unity or Enterprise 

testing stations. 
 
Advantages 
 

1. The council will continue to have access to analytical data in regards to MOT 
failures in order to identify where specific vehicles fail tests frequently. 

2. Additional vehicle test requirements that are currently subject to testing under 
the councils MOT exemption test regime will remain in place. They include 
the certification of the fire extinguisher, first aid kit, fare card, and the safety 
testing of the wheelchair ramp where appropriate. 

 
Disadvantages 
 

1. The administrative burden on both the driver and the council will continue. 
2. The number of routine interactions between the driver and the council will 

continue and hence the benefits of the reduction of any avoidable any 
interactions will not be achieved.  

3. Will not contribute to a more cost effective service freeing up resources 
enabling issues to be dealt with in a more timely fashion. 

4. Will not encourage competition and therefore will not generate a more 
competitive pricing structure and market place. 

5. The flexibility for vehicle test appointments will remain limited with the current 
testing regime. 

 
4. Regulatory Impact Assessment 
 
Cost 
 
The overall level of fees and costs will depend on which option, or combination of 
options, maybe chosen to replace the present arrangements. Whatever the outcome 
Peterborough City Council is committed to ensuring the costs are proportionate and 
offer good value. 
 
Proposed Fees 
The table below indicates the proposed fees payable to the council depending on the 
outcome of the consultation and any amendments to the Taxi and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy. Where the fee excludes the cost of the vehicle test the driver will be 
responsible for this cost and will pay the testing centre direct.  
 

 Current Fee Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 

Hackney 
Carriage 

Licence Fee 

£210  
including test 

£160 
excluding test 

£160 
excluding test 

£210  
including test 

Private Hire 
Vehicle 

Licence Fee 

£180 
including test 

£130 
excluding test 

£130 
excluding test 

£180 
including test 

6 Monthly Test 
(where 

applicable) 

£65 
including test 

£10* 
excluding test 

£10* 
excluding test 

£65 
including test 

* Where 6 monthly test certificates are not supplied to the council by the required 

19



 Page 6 of 7

date and subsequently it becomes necessary for officers to investigate there will be 
an additional charge of £5 

 
 

    

    

YOUR COMMENTS AND MAKING A SUBMISSIONYOUR COMMENTS AND MAKING A SUBMISSIONYOUR COMMENTS AND MAKING A SUBMISSIONYOUR COMMENTS AND MAKING A SUBMISSION    
 
Your comments 
 
We hope you will take time to consider the options mentioned and respond to us with 
your comments on how you would like to see the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle Licensing requirements taken forward in the future.  
 
We want to hear from you, and in particular your thoughts on the following aspects of 
the proposals would be very welcome. 
 

- The principles and considerations underpinning the each option. 
- Any advantages or disadvantages to be considered. 
- The practical implications of any of the options. 

 
We would also welcome any other options that appear to you to provide a workable 
alternative to the current arrangements. 
 
How to respond 
 
If you wish to make representations concerning any of the proposals contained within 
this consultation document please ensure that your comments arrive on or before 
Thursday 25 April 2013 (Please quote reference number lpc01/2013 in your 
correspondence). 
 
You can respond via email to lpc@peterborough.gov.uk or alternatively you can 
respond in writing to the following address: 
 
Licensing Consultation Officer 
The Licensing Team 
4th Floor 
Bayard Place 
Broadway 
Peterborough 
PE1 1HZ 
 
If you are responding as a representative of an organisation, please include in your 
response some background information about the people or organisation you 
represent. 
 
This consultation is being sent to the organisations and individuals previously listed in 
this document. If you think any other organisation or person should see it please let 
us know. 
 
Please note that all representations received may be considered in public by the 
Council and that the substance of any representations together with the name and 
address of the person making it could become available for public inspection. 
 

20



 Page 7 of 7

Next steps 
 
Any amendments to the policy will be introduced following full consideration of the 
responses received and the approval of the Licensing Committee. Until further notice 
all existing policies and conditions remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 

List of Consultees 

Organisation Contact Method 

General Public  

Public Notice – Published Thursday 31 January 2013 Peterborough 
Telegraph 

Taxi and Private Hire Trade / Groups  

PHCF – Peterborough Hackney Carriage Federation Email 

Private Hire Drivers Association Email 

Private Hire Operators Post 

Licensed Drivers / Owners Post 

Vehicle Suppliers  

Allied Vehicles Limited Email 

Bindmans LLP (Representing Allied Vehicles) Email 

Cab Direct Email 

London Taxi Company (Administrators) Email 

London Taxi Company (Paul Kelsey) Email 

Service Providers  

Enterprise Peterborough (vehicle Testing) Email 

Unity Automotive (vehicle testing) Email 

Suppliers  

Pageantry (CCTV) Email 

Xtron (CCTV) Email 

Groups  

DIAL – Peterborough Disability Forum Email 

MS Society Email 

PREC – Peterborough Racial Equality Email 

Equality & Human Rights Commission Email 

PECT – Peterborough Environment City Trust Email 

Opportunity Peterborough Email 

Peterborough City Council  

All Ward Councillors Email 

All Parish Councillors Internal Post 

Director of Operations Email 

Head of Finance  Email 

Safer Peterborough Email 

Head of Legal Services Email 

Trading Standards Email 

Planning Services Email 

Networks - Highway Control Email 

Head of Neighbourhoods Email 

Head of Operations Email 

Passenger Transport Email 

Director of Public Health Email 

Safeguarding Children Email 

Agencies / Authorities  

Cambridgeshire Constabulary Email 

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Email 

VOSA (Peterborough Office)  Email 

 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 

 

Consultation Responses Received 
Vehicle Testing for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles 

Organisation 
Contact 
Method 

Taxi and Private Hire Trade  

PHCF – Peterborough Hackney Carriage Federation Email 

1 response from an individual Hackney Carriage Driver  Email 

  

Suppliers  

Enterprise Peterborough – Andrew Prowting – Transport Manager Email 

  

Agencies / Authorities  

Cambridgeshire Constabulary - Superintendant Dan Vajzovic, 
Peterborough Area Commander 

Email 

  

Individuals  

Mr Brian Gascoyne (previous Secretary of Peterborough Hackney 
Carriage Federation)  

Post 

Mr Ian Robinson Email 

 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3.1 14 November 2013
	3.2 12 December 2013
	4 Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing
	4. Appendix 1 - Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing - 140213 Licensing Committee
	4. Appendix 2 - Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing - 140213 Licensing Committee
	4. Appendix 3 - Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing - 140213 Licensing Committee
	4. Appendix 4 - Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing - 140213 Licensing Committee
	4. Appendix 5 - Changes in the Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing - 140213 Licensing Committee


